Public Document Pack

MEETING
OF THE COUNCIL

Thursday, 15th July, 2021

7.00 pm
Ramsgate Sports Centre

www.thanet.gov.uk
01843 577000

We may be able to provide this document in
a different format such as Braille, audio or
large print, or in another language. Please
call 01843 577165 for details.

Page 1

Date:
Our ref:
Ask For:
Direct Dial:
Email:

5 July 2021
Council/Agenda
James Clapson
(01843) 577200
james.clapson@thanet.gov.uk

You are hereby summoned to attend the meeting of the Thanet District Council to be held
in the Ramsgate Sports Centre on Thursday, 15 July 2021 at 7.00 pm for the purpose of
transacting the business mentioned below.

Director of Corporate Governance
To: The Members of Thanet District Council
AGENDA
Item
No

1.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING (Pages 5 - 10)
To approve the Minutes of the meeting of Council held on 3/6/2021, copy attached.

2.

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE

3.

ANNOUNCEMENTS
To receive any announcements from the Chairman, Leader, Members of the Cabinet
or Chief Executive in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 2.2 (iv).

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST (Pages 11 - 12)
To receive any declarations of interest. Members are advised to consider the advice
contained within the Declaration of Interest advice attached to this Agenda. If a
Member declares an interest, they should complete the Declaration of Interest Form

5.

PETITIONS
To receive petitions from the public in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 12.

6.

QUESTIONS FROM THE PRESS AND PUBLIC (Pages 13 - 14)
To receive questions received from the press or public in accordance with Council
Procedure Rule 13.
-2-

Page 2

Item
No

7.

Subject

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL (Pages 15 - 18)
To receive questions from Members of the Council in accordance with Council
Procedure Rule 14.

8.

NOTICE OF MOTION
To receive any Notices of Motion from Members of Council in accordance with the
Council Procedure Rule 3.

8a

MOTION REGARDING FOOD POVERTY (Pages 19 - 22)

9.

LEADERS REPORT (Pages 23 - 24)
To receive a report from the Leader of the Council in accordance with Council
Procedure Rule 2.4.

10.

REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
(Pages 25 - 34)

11.

DRAFT MEMBER PARENTAL LEAVE POLICY (Pages 35 - 44)

12.

CHANGES TO COMMITTEES, PANELS AND BOARDS - 2021/22 (Pages 45 - 52)

13.

REPORT OF AN URGENT DECISION UNDER RULE 4 OF THE BUDGET AND
POLICY FRAMEWORK PROCEDURE RULES (Pages 53 - 56)

14.

REPORT TO COUNCIL ON TWO URGENT DECISIONS UNDER RULE 4 OF THE
BUDGET AND POLICY FRAMEWORK PROCEDURE RULES (Pages 57 - 58)

15.

ALLOWANCES SCHEME (Pages 59 - 62)

-3-

Page 3

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 1
COUNCIL
Minutes of the meeting held on 3 June 2021 at 7.00 pm in Ramsgate Sports Centre.

Present:

1.

Councillor Jason Savage (Chair); Councillors Albon, Ara, Ashbee,
Austin, Bailey, Bambridge, J Bayford, R Bayford, Boyd, Braidwood,
Coleman-Cooke, Crittenden, Currie, Day, Dennis, Dexter,
Duckworth, Everitt, Fellows, Garner, Green, Hart, Hopkinson,
Huxley, Keen, Kup, Pat Moore, Paul Moore, Parsons, L Piper,
Rev. S Piper, Potts, Pugh, Rattigan, Rawf, Rogers, Rusiecki,
D Saunders, M Saunders, Scobie, Scott, Shonk, Shrubb, Tomlinson,
Towning, Wallin, Whitehead, Wing, Wright and Yates

APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor’s Farrance, Gregory, Ovenden and
Roper.

2.

MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING
It was proposed by the Chairman, seconded by the Vice Chairman and agreed, that the
minutes of the meeting of Council held on 13 May 2021 be approved.

3.

ANNOUNCEMENTS
The Chair advised that Councillor Game had recently stepped down from her duties as a
District Councillor. On behalf of the Council he offered his thanks to Councillor Game for
her efforts while in the role.

4.

DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
There were no declarations of interest.

5.

PETITIONS
(a)

Thanet Lifts Petition

Mr Stickings presented a petition requesting that the lifts at Viking Bay and Ramsgate
beach be reopened. Members noted that the following petition contained 2180
signatures at the time of submission:
“Thanet District Council have announced on 01/04/21 that the lifts at Viking Bay and Ramsgate will be closed
this is their statement as detailed below.
‘On the Thanet council website a statement says: “Unfortunately our seaside lifts at Viking Bay and
Ramsgate remain closed. Even if temporary repairs can be made to get the lifts open, contractors have
advised there is no guarantee they will stay working during the season.
“A long-term strategy for both lifts will be formulated to consider their future. In the meantime, the council has
measures in place to allow for alternative accessible routes to the beach, which include:
Matting installed at one side of the beach (Harbour Street, Broadstairs) to lengthen the boardwalk and allow
for alternative accessible routes to the beach.”

Page 5

Agenda Item 1
This is not good enough and needs to be addressed ASAP, if they were working last year, how can it be that
these lifts are now beyond repair. This impacts massively on our disabled community. I have a son who is
blind the Lift is helpful for him on some occasions but more so for those who have other issues. This impacts
severely on our disabled community and disabled visitors. The solution of matting is NOT good enough.
These lifts are part of Broadstairs and Ramsgate. Visitors flock to our beautiful towns and love the fact that
its open to all to use ALL amenities. Sadly TDC have now taken this away. It will have an impact not only on
them but our local shops and businesses who some will no longer be able to reach.
Spend the money, repair the lifts, and give our disabled people the same level of inclusion and access as
their peers. Everybody needs access. Our disabled community and those who need these lifts including our
visitors will lose access because of this action, please help and support this so TDC will reverse this
decision.”
Following debate by Members, and in accordance with the Council’s Petition Scheme,
the petition was referred to Cabinet. There would be a report back to Council within three
ordinary meetings.
6.

QUESTIONS FROM THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
(a)

Question No. 1 - Regarding the Granville Cinema

Mr Gregory asked Councillor Duckworth the following question:
“Can the council confirm that the Granville Cinema was registered as a building of community value in
September 2019 and if this is true, does it mean a community organisation should run it and what have they
been doing since to identify an appropriate community organisation as next custodians?
Councillor Duckworth responded with the following points:
 The cinema was approved as an Asset of Community Value on 1 October 2019.
Therefore if the building was to be sold, the sale would be delayed to allow
interested community groups to raise funds in order to purchase it.
 The venue was not on the asset disposal list and there were no plans for it to be
added to the list.
 If a community organisation wished to run the cinema, the first step would be to
complete a community transfer application form.
7.

QUESTIONS FROM MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL
(a)

Question No.1 - Regarding the Chair of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel

Councillor Everitt asked Councillor R Bayford the following question:
“TDC's constitution states:
"It has been the convention at this council to appoint an opposition councillor to the role of chair of the
overview and scrutiny panel."
This has normally meant that the choice of chair had the support of the largest opposition party or the
support of opposition members overall.
Does Cllr Bayford think that it would be appropriate for the ruling group to use its votes to install its own
choice of opposition councillor in that role regardless of the preference of opposition members as a whole or
does he think, like me, that that could look like a manoeuvre to minimise proper scrutiny?”
Councillor R Bayford responded that:

Page 6

Agenda Item 1


He was unsure of the purpose of the question; he had been appointed to the
position by the Council at the Annual Council meeting when the Council was
controlled by a Labour administration.

Councillor Everitt followed up his question by asking if the election of an Independent
Councillor to the position in 2012 had set a good precedent.
Councillor R Bayford responded that in that instance he did not think a good precedent
had been set.
(b)

Question No.2 - Regarding the Use of PFAS/PROS Chemicals

Councillor Wing asked Councillor Albon the following question:
“Given it is highly likely that PFAS/PFOS, the harmful 'forever chemical', was used on the old Manston
Airport site and for many years, please could you tell me what testing for PFAS/PFOS has been undertaken
and what any results concluded?”
Councillor Albon responded that:




This type of testing was not one of Thanet Council’s responsibilities, drinking
water was regularly tested by Southern Water to protect public health.
Any concern regarding the contamination of abstracted groundwater should be
raised with the Drinking Water Inspectorate (DWI) or Ofwat, who were the
relevant regulators for drinking water quality.
Southern Water and the Environment Agency were both consultees on the
Manston Airport DCO application.

Councillor Wing followed up her question by noting that there were no sites of official
contamination in Thanet, she asked what was required for a site to fall into this category?
Councillor Albon responded that he would find out and let Cllr Wing know.
(c)

Question No.3 - Regarding training and Employment.

Councillor Austin asked Councillor Duckworth the following question:
“Thanet’s prosperity depends on decent, high-quality, sustainable jobs and local people with the skills to do
them.
We know the pandemic has triggered redundancies in some sectors, with workers now needing to retrain.
Could you please outline how TDC is working with businesses and with Further Education, skills & adult
learning providers to expand learning and skills development opportunities for Thanet’s school leavers and
adults?”
Councillor Duckworth responded that:




Education providers were engaged in all of the regeneration programmes that the
Council was involved in.
Through these programmes, the Council looked at opportunities to provide jobs
and education for young people, those furthest from the labor market, and those
looking to retrain.
A senior council officer sits on the Broadstairs Campus Local Board of the EKC
Group. They provided Council input and gained an understanding of the needs of
the college.

Page 7

Agenda Item 1
Councillor Austin followed up her question by asking what the Council did to set an
example to businesses to offer these kinds of opportunities?
Councillor Duckworth responded that this would come under the banner of community
wealth building, which encouraged employers to offer youth apprenticeships.
(d)

Question No.4 - Regarding the Installation of Broadband Masts

Councillor Paul Moore asked Councillor Everitt the following question:
“In light of the recent installation and subsequent removal of a fibre broadband mast/pole in a conservation
area.
Would the cabinet member of the council please confirm that any future installation involving areas of
sensitivity, such as conservation areas or in close proximity to scheduled monuments / listed buildings will
be reviewed and monitored by the officers and to ensure all is in accordance with Government legislative
guidelines?”
Councillor Everitt responded that:






Telecommunications operators were able to install new ground-based
infrastructure, such as telegraph poles, under national planning permitted
development rights, which did not require planning applications, but were subject
to various size limits.
These rights were subject to a prior approval process under which the Council
could consider the proposed siting and appearance of the infrastructure. This
would include the impact on conservation areas and listed buildings. However
this was not required when the telegraph pole was in connection with fixed-line
broadband.
The Council would continue to investigate any complaints regarding the
installation of telegraph poles that had exceeded the limitations of permitted
development rights and required either prior approval, or planning permission.

Councillor Paul Moore followed up his question by asking what control measures should
be put in place to ensure that the Council was consulted about the installation of masts.
Councillor Everitt responded that the planning department may wish to consider their
involvement and respond directly to Councillor Moore.
8.

NOTICE OF MOTION
No motions on notice had been received in accordance with council procedure rule 3.

9.

LEADERS REPORT
This item was withdrawn from the agenda.

10.

REPORT OF THE CHAIRMAN OF THE OVERVIEW AND SCRUTINY PANEL
Councillor Bayford, Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Panel, introduced his report.
Members noted the report.

11.

BROADSTAIRS AND ST PETERS NEIGHBOURHOOD PLAN ADOPTION
It was proposed by Councillor Everitt, seconded by Councillor J Bayford and Members
agreed that the recommendations as detailed in the report be approved, namely:

Page 8

Agenda Item 1
“That Council resolve to make the Broadstairs and St Peters Neighbourhood Plan.”
12.

ELECTION OF LEADER OF THE COUNCIL
It was noted that there was a typographical error within the report at paragraph 1.2. The
former Leader Cllr Everitt resigned as Leader on the 22 April.
Councillor Pugh proposed and Councillor D Saunders seconded that Councillor Ashbee
be Leader.
Councillor Whitehead proposed and Councillor Albon seconded that Councillor Everitt be
Leader.
Councillor Austin proposed and Councillor Wing seconded that Councillor Garner be
Leader.
After the voting process had been conducted, Councillor Ashbee was declared Leader of
Thanet District Council for the remainder of the term of office.

Meeting concluded: 7.45pm

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4

Do I have a Disclosable Pecuniary Interest and if so what action should I take?
Your Disclosable Pecuniary Interests (DPI) are those interests that are, or should be, listed on your
Register of Interest Form.
If you are at a meeting and the subject relating to one of your DPIs is to be discussed, in so far as you
are aware of the DPI, you must declare the existence and explain the nature of the DPI during the
declarations of interest agenda item, at the commencement of the item under discussion, or when the
interest has become apparent
Once you have declared that you have a DPI (unless you have been granted a dispensation by the
Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have applied to the Monitoring
Officer prior to the meeting) you must:1.
2.
3.

Not speak or vote on the matter;
Withdraw from the meeting room during the consideration of the matter;
Not seek to improperly influence the decision on the matter.

Do I have a significant interest and if so what action should I take?
A significant interest is an interest (other than a DPI or an interest in an Authority Function) which:
1.
2.

Affects the financial position of yourself and/or an associated person; or
Relates to the determination of your application for any approval, consent, licence, permission or
registration made by, or on your behalf of, you and/or an associated person;
And which, in either case, a member of the public with knowledge of the relevant facts would
reasonably regard as being so significant that it is likely to prejudice your judgment of the public
interest.

An associated person is defined as:
● A family member or any other person with whom you have a close association, including your
spouse, civil partner, or somebody with whom you are living as a husband or wife, or as if you are
civil partners; or
● Any person or body who employs or has appointed such persons, any firm in which they are a
partner, or any company of which they are directors; or
● Any person or body in whom such persons have a beneficial interest in a class of securities
exceeding the nominal value of £25,000;
● Any body of which you are in a position of general control or management and to which you are
appointed or nominated by the Authority; or
● any body in respect of which you are in a position of general control or management and which:
- exercises functions of a public nature; or
- is directed to charitable purposes; or
- has as its principal purpose or one of its principal purposes the influence of public opinion or
policy (including any political party or trade union)

Page 11

Agenda Item 4
An Authority Function is defined as: ● Housing - where you are a tenant of the Council provided that those functions do not relate
particularly to your tenancy or lease; or
● Any allowance, payment or indemnity given to members of the Council;
● Any ceremonial honour given to members of the Council
● Setting the Council Tax or a precept under the Local Government Finance Act 1992
If you are at a meeting and you think that you have a significant interest then you must declare the
existence and nature of the significant interest at the commencement of the matter, or when the
interest has become apparent, or the declarations of interest agenda item.
Once you have declared that you have a significant interest (unless you have been granted a
dispensation by the Standards Committee or the Monitoring Officer, for which you will have applied to
the Monitoring Officer prior to the meeting) you must:1.

2.
3.



Not speak or vote (unless the public have speaking rights, or you are present to make
representations, answer questions or to give evidence relating to the business being discussed in
which case you can speak only)
Withdraw from the meeting during consideration of the matter or immediately after speaking.
Not seek to improperly influence the decision.

Gifts, Benefits and Hospitality
Councillors must declare at meetings any gift, benefit or hospitality with an estimated value (or
cumulative value if a series of gifts etc.) of £25 or more. You must, at the commencement of the
meeting or when the interest becomes apparent, disclose the existence and nature of the gift, benefit or
hospitality, the identity of the donor and how the business under consideration relates to that person or
body. However you can stay in the meeting unless it constitutes a significant interest, in which case it
should be declared as outlined above.

What if I am unsure?
If you are in any doubt, Members are strongly advised to seek advice from the Monitoring Officer or
the Committee Services Manager well in advance of the meeting.

If you need to declare an interest then please complete the declaration of interest form.

Page 12

Agenda Item 6
QUESTIONS FROM THE PRESS AND PUBLIC
Council

15 July 2021

Report Author

Committee Services Manager

Portfolio Holder

Cabinet Member for Housing and Community Services

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Executive Summary:
The Leader and Cabinet Members will receive questions from the press and public in
accordance with Council Procedure Rule 13.

Recommendation(s):
This report is for information.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
There are no identified financial implications from this report.
Legal
There are no legal implications directly from this report.
Corporate
Council Procedure Rule 13 affords members of the public the opportunity to ask questions of
Members of the Cabinet at ordinary meetings of the Council.
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.

Page 13

Agenda Item 6
There are no specific equality issues arising from this report.

Corporate Priorities
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ● Communities

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

Council Procedure Rule 13 enables members of the public may ask questions of
members of the Cabinet at ordinary meetings of the Council.

1.2

Any questions received in accordance with the Council’s constitution will be available
to view on the Council website:
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/info-pages/speaking-at-council-meetings/

1.3

Under Council Procedure Rule 13.6, the Chairman will invite the questioner to put
their question to the Member named in the notice. If the questioner is not present,
the question shall not be put and shall be answered in writing.

1.4

Under Council Procedure Rule 13.7, if the Member to whom the question is directed
is present they will provide an oral answer. If that Member is not present, the
question will be answered by the Leader or another Member nominated by the
Leader for the purpose unless it is inappropriate for the Leader to give an oral answer
or to nominate another Member to give an oral answer, in which case the question
will be dealt with by a written answer.

1.5

The total time devoted to questions from the press and public shall not exceed 30
minutes. Any question which cannot be dealt with during that time will be replied to
in writing.

Contact Officer: Nick Hughes, Committee Services Manager
Reporting to: Tim Howes, Director of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer
Annex List
There are no Annexes with this report.
Background Papers
There are no Background Papers with this report.
Corporate Consultation
Finance: Matt Sanham, Corporate Finance Manager
Legal: Tim Howes, Director of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer

Page 14

Agenda Item 7
QUESTIONS FROM THE MEMBERS OF THE COUNCIL
Council

15 July 2021

Report Author

Committee Services Manager

Portfolio Holder

Cabinet Member for Housing and Community Services

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Executive Summary:
The Leader, Cabinet Members and Chairman of any Committee or Sub-Committee will
receive questions from Members of the Council in accordance with Council Procedure Rule
14.

Recommendation(s):
This report is for information.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
There are no identified financial implications from this report.
Legal
There are no legal implications directly from this report.
Corporate
Council Procedure Rule 14.3 affords Members of the Council the opportunity to ask
questions of Members of the Cabinet at ordinary meetings of the Council.
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.

Page 15

Agenda Item 7

There are no specific equality issues arising from this report.

Corporate Priorities
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ● Communities

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

Council Procedure Rule 14.3 states that a Member of the Council may ask
▪
▪

a Member of the Cabinet; or
the Chairman of any Committee or Sub-Committee

A question on any matter in relation to which the Council has powers or duties or
which affects the district.
1.2

Council Procedure Rule 14.7 states that an answer may take the form of:
a) a direct oral answer;
b) where the desired information is in a publication of the Council or other
published work, a reference to that publication; or
c) where the reply cannot conveniently be given orally, a written answer
circulated within three working days to the questioner.

1.3

A Member may, in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 14.8, ask one
supplementary question without notice to the Member to whom the first question was
asked. The supplemental question must arise directly out of the original question or
the reply.

1.4

The questioner shall have two minutes for the initial question and one minute for the
supplementary question and the respondent shall have five minutes for the initial
reply and two minutes for the supplementary reply. (Council Procedure Rule 14.9
refers)

1.5

The total time devoted to questions from Members of the Council shall not exceed 30
minutes. Any question which cannot be dealt with during that time will be replied to
in writing.

1.6

Any questions received in accordance with the Council’s constitution will be available
to view on the Council’s website:
https://www.thanet.gov.uk/info-pages/speaking-at-council-meetings/

Contact Officer: Nick Hughes, Committee Services Manager
Reporting to: Tim Howes, Director of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer

Page 16

Agenda Item 7
Annex List
There are no Annexes with this report.
Background Papers
There are no Background Papers with this report.
Corporate Consultation
Finance: Chris Blundell, Director of Financial Services
Legal: Tim Howes, Director of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer

Page 17

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8a


NOTICEOFMOTIONREGARDINGFOODPOVERTY 

Council

ReportAuthor

PortfolioHolder

Status

Classification:

KeyDecision

Ward:


15July2021 
NickHughes,C
 ommitteeServicesManager 
Councillor Kup, Cabinet Member for Community Safety
andYouthEngagement 
ForDecision 
Unrestricted 
No 
AllWards 

ExecutiveSummary: 

This Council will consider anoticeofmotionrequiringtheLeaderoftheCounciltowriteto
theheadoftheNationalFoodStrategyreviewtoaskthereviewtorecommendthattheright
tofoodisenshrinedwithinthestrategy. 

AnymotiononnoticethatproposesthetakingofadecisionwhereCouncilhasnotreceived
a report from the officerssettingoutthetechnical,legalandfinancialimplicationsoftaking
thedecisioninquestionshallonlybedebated. 


Recommendation(s): 

Councilisinvitedtoconsiderwhethertodebatethemotion. 


CorporateImplications 

FinancialandValueforMoney 

Nonearisingdirectlyfromthisreport. 

Legal 

CouncilProcedureRule3.7statesthat:“theMemberwhosenameappearsfirstonthe
noticewillmovethemotionduringhisorherspeechandcallforaseconder. Ifseconded,a
Memberfromthecontrollingpoliticalgroupwillbeentitledtoareply,afterwhichthemotion
shallstandreferredwithoutfurtherdiscussiontotheCabinetorappropriatecommitteefor
determinationorreportunlesstheCouncildecidestodebatethemotioninaccordancewith
Rule16”( rulesofdebate) 

Corporate 

CouncilProcedureRule3providestheopportunityforCouncillorstogiveadvancenoticeof
motionstobeputtoCouncil. 

Page 19

Agenda Item 8a


EqualityAct2010&PublicSectorEqualityDuty 

Members are reminded of the requirement, under the PublicSectorEqualityDuty(section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decisionistaken.TheaimsoftheDutyare:(i)eliminateunlawfuldiscrimination,harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic andpeoplewhodonotshareit,and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protectedcharacteristicandpeople
whodonotshareit. 

Protectedcharacteristics:age,sex,disability,race,sexualorientation,genderreassignment,
religion or belief andpregnancy&maternity.Onlyaim(i)oftheDutyappliestoMarriage&
civilpartnership. 

Therearenospecificequalitiesissuesarisingfromthisreport. 


CORPORATEPRIORITIES 
Thisreportrelatestothefollowingcorporatepriorities:- 
● Communities 


1.0 IntroductionandBackground 

1.1

The following motion has been received from Councillor Keen in accordance with
CouncilProcedureRuleNo.3: 


“Thereisacrisisoffoodpovertyinthiscountry,createdbypoliticalchoicesand
systemicfailingsandthrownintosharpreliefbytheCovidpandemic. TheTrussell
Trustreportsasoaring81%increaseinemergencyfoodparcelsfromfoodbanksin
itsnetworkduringthelasttwoweeksinMarch2021comparedtothesameperiod
lastyearandourlocalfoodbankstellthesamestory. 

Some35%ofThanet’sLowerSuperOutputAreas(LSOAs)areinthetop10%most
deprivedLSOAsnationally.Almost22%ofThanetchildrenareentitledtofreeschool
meals,thehighestinKent,andthispercentageiscontinuingtorise. 

TheNationalFoodStrategyisthefirstindependentreviewofEngland’sentirefood
systemfor75years.Itspurposeistosetoutavisionforthekindoffoodsystemwe
shouldbebuildingforthefutureandaplanforhowtoachievethatvision.Itis
headedbyHenryDimblebyandnextreportstothegovernmentshortly. 

TheRighttoFoodcampaignisarguingthatthe11millionpeopleinfoodpoverty
shouldbecentraltothisstrategy.Enshriningthe“righttofood”inlawwouldclarify
governmentobligationsonfoodpovertyandintroducelegalavenuestohold
governmentbodiesaccountableforviolations. 

ThiscouncilthereforecallsfortherighttofoodtobeincorporatedintotheNational
FoodStrategyandinstructstheleadertowritetoHenryDimblebytofurtherthis
demand.” 


Page 20

Agenda Item 8a


2.0 Options 

2.1

2.2

Todebatethemotionandtochoosewhethertoadoptit,ifdebatedbutCouncildoes
notthenadoptit,themotionwillfall.AsthemotionrelatestoaCouncilfunctiononly
CouncilcanagreetothemotionitcannotreferittoCabinet.  
Nottodebatethemotion,inwhichcasethemotionwillfall. 



3.0 DecisionMakingProcess 

3.1
ItisforCounciltodecidewhetherornottodebatethemotion. 


ContactOfficer:NickHughes,CommitteeServicesManager 
Reportingto:EstelleCulligan,HeadofLawandDemocracy 

AnnexList 

TherearenoAnnexeswiththisreport. 

BackgroundPapers 

TherearenoBackgroundPaperswiththisreport. 

CorporateConsultation 

Finance:ChrisBlundell,DirectorofFinance 
Legal:EstelleCulligan,DirectorofLawandDemocracy 

Page 21

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 9
LEADER’S REPORT TO COUNCIL
Council

15 July 2021

Report Author

Nick Hughes, Committee Services Manager

Portfolio Holder

The Leader

Status

For Information

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Executive Summary:
To receive a report from the Leader in accordance with Council Procedure Rule 2.4

Recommendation(s):
None - This report is for information only.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
There are no identified financial implications from this report.
Legal
There are no legal implications directly from this report.
Corporate
The Leaders report helps to contribute to the promoting open communications corporate
value.
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and (iii)
foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people who
do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.

Page 23

Agenda Item 9

The Council demonstrates due regard to the aims of the Public Sector Equality Duty when
conducting its business, this due regard is mirrored in the leaders report which provides an
update on key issues arising since the last meeting of Council.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ● Growth
● Environmental
● Communities

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

Council Procedure Rule 2.4 provides that:

“The Leader of the Council will make available in writing the content of his/her oral report to
opposition group leaders no later than the Saturday before the meeting. The speech will not
exceed ten minutes on key issues arising since the last meeting of Council.
The Leaders of any other political group may comment on the Leader’s report. The
comments of the Leaders of the other political groups shall be limited each to five minutes. The
other Group Leaders will comment in an order determined by the number of Councillors within
those political groups, with the largest group commenting first, and so on.
The Leader has a right of reply to each Group Leader limited to two minutes, in hierarchical order,
to any comments made on his/her report.
The Leader of the Council, the Leader of the Opposition and the Leader of any other political
group may appoint substitutes to speak on their behalf.
No motions may be moved nor resolutions passed under this item.”

Contact Officer: Nick Hughes, Committee Services Manager
Reporting to: Tim Howes, Director of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer
Annex List
There are no Annexes with this report.
Background Papers
There are no Background Papers with this report.
Corporate Consultation
Finance: Chris Blundell, Director of Financial Services
Legal: Tim Howes, Director of Corporate Governance and Monitoring Officer

Page 24

Agenda Item 10
Overview & Scrutiny Panel Chairman’s Report to Council
Council

15 July 2021

Report Author

Committee Service Manager

Status

For Information

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Ward:

Thanet Wide

Executive Summary:
This report comments on the activities of the Overview & Scrutiny Panel for 2021/22 which
were considered by the Panel on 25 May 2021 for adoption as the work programme for the
year.

Recommendation(s):
Members are being asked to comment on, make suggestions and note the report.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
There are no financial implications directly arising from this report. The report provides a
briefing to Full Council about the current work activities of the Overview & Scrutiny Panel.
Legal
There are no legal implications directly arising from this report. A presentation of the Panel
Chairman’s report to Full Council enables the Chairman to fulfil their duty as is required by
the Council’s Constitution.
Corporate
There are no corporate risks associated with this report. The report enables discussion by
Members at Full Council on the activities of the Finance Scrutiny Panel.
The debate on the Panel Chairman’s report contributes to open communication across the
council. A strong scrutiny function contributes to an open democratic process for decision
making and delivery of value for money services as council decisions are interrogated by
Members before they are implemented. In instances where such decisions are interrogated
after implementation, there will be lessons to learn for future policy development.

Page 25

Agenda Item 10
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.
This report relates to the following aim of the equality duty: (Delete as appropriate)
1. To eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act.
2. To advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not share it
3. To foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not share it.
No implications arise directly but the Council needs to retain a strong focus and
understanding on issues of diversity amongst the local community and ensure service
delivery matches these.
It was important to be aware of the Council’s responsibility under the Public Sector Equality
Duty (PSED) and show evidence that due consideration has been given to the equalities
impact that may be brought upon communities by the decisions made by Council.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES
This report relates to Communities.

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

At each ordinary Full Council meeting, the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny
Panel presents a progress update report on the activities of the Panel since the last
Council meeting.

1.2

Such a report would be subject to comment or debate by Members. This is in
accordance with Council Procedure Rule 15.1 of Part 4 of the Council Constitution.

1.3

This report updates the Council on the work of the Panel since the last Council
meeting and allows for discussion of the work undertaken, therefore strengthening
the Council’s scrutiny function.

1.4

This report follows on from the update report that was presented at Full Council on 3
June 2021. This report is the second of the new municipal year and is a limited

Page 26

Agenda Item 10
update to the one presented at the previous meeting as there has been no other
meeting since then. The next Panel meeting will be on 20 July.

2.0

The Current Situation
Scrutiny Review Topics

2.1

2.2

2.3

2.4

In 2019/20 through to 2020/21, the Panel started working through the list of scrutiny
review topics and agreed a prioritised list using the matrix that was established and
agreed upon by Members. Whilst some of the topics would be considered through
conducting reviews, others would be expedited through one off reports (where
appropriate).
Memorial plaques and Monuments
The reviewing of memorial plaques and monuments in the district was one such
topic. This was given priority in order to expedite the review process and contribute to
the establishment of the policy by Cabinet. However due to imminent new legislation
which included new guidance on how the councils could address the issue of
monuments and plaques in the district, it was not possible to continue with this work
stream. On 20 April 2021, the Panel decided to temporarily halt and therefore keep
in abeyance the work of the Memorial Working Party until an appropriate time.
Planning Enforcement Review
Planning Enforcement Review: On 20 April 2021, the Panel set up the Planning
Enforcement Working Party to hold one meeting and report back to the Panel on how
best Scrutiny could contribute to the current review of the Planning Enforcement
protocol for Thanet. reviewed the Planning Enforcement in the district at the February
meeting. A meeting was scheduled for 25 June. It is hoped that the working party
would draft recommendations to take to the Panel meeting on 29 July. The Panel
could at this point then decide how best to feed into the review of the planning
enforcement function.
Review of the Council's Community response during the pandemic: The
Community Hub and engagement with the voluntary sector
At the meeting on 25 May 29021, the Panel considered the Chief Executive’s
exploratory report on “A review of the council’s Community response during the
pandemic, specifically the work of the Community Hub and engagement with the
voluntary sector.

2.5

The purpose of the report was for the Panel to find out if there was enough interest
among Members and if there was enough scope to justify conducting a more indepth
review of the topic. However after some discussions, the Panel decided to take no
further action.

2.6

Annex 1 details the current work programme before any new work has been added.
All the scrutiny review topics that the Panel identified as ongoing work streams that
would spill over into multiple municipal year periods are detailed in the Annex 2 to the
report.
Cabinet Presentations at OSP Meetings

Page 27

Agenda Item 10
2.7

The Panel may opt to identify specific topics that Members would wish were
responded to by Portfolio Holders through Cabinet Member presentations during
2021/22. The Panel was still to engage the new Cabinet to agree on an engagement
approach regarding scrutiny activities.

2.8

The rest of the work programme would be made up of items which would have been
referred to the Panel by Cabinet. These are the items which are part of the Council
Budget and Planning Framework and are identified from the Forward Plan. Other
items which may have a significant public interest, where the Panel may feel that
their contributions would enhance the decision making process would also be added
to the work programme.

3.0

Options

3.1

Members may opt to offer suggestions for consideration by the Panel;
or
Members may simply wish to comment on and note the report.

3.2

Contact Officer: Charles Hungwe, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Tel: 01843 577186
Reporting to: Nick Hughes, Committee Services Manager, Tel: 01843 577208
Annex List
Annex 1: Overview & Scrutiny Panel Work Programme for 2021/22
Annex 2: Scrutiny Review Topics with the Scoring Matrix
Background Papers
None
Corporate Consultation
Finance: Chris Blundell (Director of Finance)
Legal: Estelle Culligan, Director of Law and Democracy

Page 28

Overview & Scrutiny Panel Work Programme for 2021/22
Meeting Date
Indicative Agenda Items

Issue Source
Standing Agenda Item
Standing Agenda Item
Community Services Item

26 August 2021

Cabinet Member Presentation
Review of OSP Work Programme for 2021/22
Forward Plan & Exempt Cabinet Report List

Standing Agenda Item
Standing Agenda Item
Standing Agenda Item

26 October 2021

Cabinet Member Presentation
Review of OSP Work Programme for 2021/22
Forward Plan & Exempt Cabinet Report List

Standing Agenda Item
Standing Agenda Item
Standing Agenda Item

23 November 2021

Cabinet Member Presentation
Fees and Charges 2022-23
Review of OSP Work Programme for 2021/22
Forward Plan & Exempt Cabinet Report List

Standing Agenda Item
Financial Services Item
Standing Agenda Item
Standing Agenda Item

18 January 2022

Cabinet Member Presentation
Budget 2022-23
HRA Budget 2022-23
Review of OSP Work Programme for 2021/22
Forward Plan & Exempt Cabinet Report List

Standing Agenda Item
Financial Services Item
Financial Services Item
Standing Agenda Item
Standing Agenda Item

Agenda Item 10

Review of OSP Work Programme for 2021/22
Forward Plan & Exempt Cabinet Report List
Planning Enforcement Review - Report back by the Planning
Enforcement Working Party

Annex 1

Page 29

20 July 2021

17 February 2022

Cabinet Member Presentation
Review of OSP Work Programme for 2021/22
Forward Plan & Exempt Cabinet Report List

Standing Agenda Item
Standing Agenda Item
Standing Agenda Item

15 March 2022

Cabinet Member Presentation
Review of OSP Work Programme for 2021/22
Forward Plan & Exempt Cabinet Report List

Standing Agenda Item
Standing Agenda Item
Standing Agenda Item

19 April 2022

Cabinet Member Presentation
Review of OSP Work Programme for 2021/22
Forward Plan & Exempt Cabinet Report List

Standing Agenda Item
Standing Agenda Item
Standing Agenda Item

Agenda Item 10

Annex 1

Page 30

Table as at March 2021
Title Of the Scrutiny Review

Review
Type

Date
added to
the
scoring
table

Membership

Is the topic
related to a
priority or
value within
the
Council’s
Corporate
Plan?

Is the topic
of high
public
concern?

Is the topic currently
under-performing as
per the Council’s
quarterly
performance
monitoring?

Will the topic
result in
recommendations
that save that
Council money or
generate income?

Time
on the
list?

Implication
s for
officer
resource
allocation

Total

Rank

Private rented sector: How does TDC
B
regulate private landlords and letting
agencies in Thanet?
Empty Properties: Why does Thanet A
have the highest number of empty
properties in Kent and what approaches
can be used to put these properties to use
in a timely manner?
Planning enforcement in the district is C
slow: Why is the planning enforcement
process seemingly so slow in Thanet and
how can it be made more efficient?

14/8/20

TBC

10

10

-

10

0

10

40

=5th

14/8/20

TBC

10

10

0

10

0

20

50

=3rd

14/8/20

TBC

10

10

-

20

0

0

40

=5th

Coastal waste clearance: How does B
Thanet ensure that its coastal promenades
and beaches are kept clear of rubbish and in
the best condition for both residents and
visitors?
Street Scene: Abandoned vehicles - how B
can TDC speed up time taken to clear
abandoned vehicles?

14/8/20

TBC

10

20

20

10

0

10

70

1st

14/8/20

TBC

10

10

-

10

0

10

40

=5th

Completion
Status

officer report
considered.
Further scrutiny
proposals being
considered.
A Planning
Enforcement
Review Working
Party was set up
on 20 April 2021
and will have its
first meeting on
25 June.

Agenda Item 10

Annex 2

Page 31

officer report
considered on 18
Feb 2021 and
the Panel
confirming the
recommendation
that
Communications
could be
strengthened on
the council’s
process to inform
residents of the
procedures and

14/8/20

TBC

10

10

-

20

0

0

40

=5th

B

14/8/20

TBC

10

10

-

10

0

10

40

=5th

B

14/8/20

TBC

10

20

-

0

0

10

40

=5th

A

14/8/20

TBC

10

20

-

10

0

20

60

2nd

B

14/8/20

TBC

10

20

-

10

0

10

50

=3rd

B

14/8/20

TBC

10

10

-

10

0

10

40

=5th

C

14/8/20

TBC

10

20

-

0

0

0

30

=14t
h

C

14/8/20

TBC

10

10

0

10

0

0

30

=14t
h

C

14/8/20

TBC

10

10

-

0

0

0

20

=16t
h

B

14/8/20

TBC

10

20

-

0

0

10

40

=5th

Panel received
three update
reports via the
Memorials
Working Group

Agenda Item 10

C

Annex 2

Page 32

Selective Licensing - Is selective
licensing the best way forward for the
improvement of the privately rented sector
Thanet and if so, could it be replicated in
other areas of the district?
Camper Vehicles being parked on the
street for too long: What is the impact of
parked Camper vans on the Thanet roads
and can this be regulated by Thanet
District Council?
Promenades - safety concerns cyclists
speeding and sharing the footpath: Would
a dedicated cycle path (or markings) along
the promenade help control bike/
pedestrian placement (and cyclist speed)?
Replacement bins for litter/dog waste:
What is the council’s reasoning behind
complete removal of damaged bins and
not replacing them?
Managing anti-social behaviour on
Thanet beaches: Are beach inspectors
the best way to control or manage beach
behaviour?
Weed killer usage: What is the best
approach for managing grass and hedges
in public open spaces in the district that
can be used to replace the use of weed
killers?
Water user group regulation: What role
does TDC have in ensuring the safety of
swimmers and other water users from the
behaviour of boat and jet ski users in
Thanet bays?
Rough Sleepers: what are we doing
about this as a long term plan of
addressing the issue (post COVID-19)?
Modern Slavery: - hand car washes. Is
there any intervention the council can do
to address the issue of modern slavery?
Statues and Blue Plaques: What would
be the best approach for managing the
discussion on and review of suitability of
statues and plaques in the district?

timescales that
the council was
confined to
under the
legislation.
review
completed.
officer report
considered.
review
completed.

Chair. Panel
agreed on 20
April to keep this
activity in
abeyance until
after new
legislation
national
monuments and
heritage was
enacted.
Shellfish collection enforcement: How C
is the collection of shellfish from Thanet
beaches
regulated
and how can
enforcement be best managed?

14/8/20

TBC

10

10

-

0

0

0

20

=16t
h

A:1 Day – 4 weeks Review: limited officer resource allocations required for a successful review
B:More than 4 weeks and up to 3 months – significant officer resource allocations required for a successful review
C:More than 3 months: very significant officer resource allocation required for a successful review

Agenda Item 10

Annex 2

Page 33

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
Draft Member Parental Leave Policy
Council

15 July 2021

Report Author

Committee Service Manager

Portfolio Holder

Councillor Ashbee, Leader of Council

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Ward:

Thanet Wide

Executive Summary:
Members are being requested to consider the recommendation from the Standards
Committee and then agree to the adoption of a parental leave policy for Members. The
agreement to have this policy in place would be on a voluntary basis as currently there were
no legal obligations for the council to have such a policy.

Recommendation(s):
Members are being asked the following the following recommendation from the Standards
Committee:
“To adopt the draft parental leave policy to the Standards Committee including the pay rates
as shown at Option 2, namely:
6 months full pay of Special Responsibility Allowance with any remaining leave being
unpaid.”

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
Adoption of Member Parental Leave Policy by the council could lead to additional costs that
would have to be met from the Council’s annual budget for Member Allowances. This is with
particular reference to the Special Responsibility Allowance (SRA) budget, which would
need to be flexible enough to accommodate parental leave uptake by councillors who
occupy roles that attract an SRA. In this instance additional costs would be incurred when
members in receipt of an SRA receive parental leave pay equivalent to the SRA for a limited
time as per the policy, whilst an SRA payment is also made to Cllr(s) covering the role during
the period of parental leave.
Legal

Page 35

Agenda Item 11
Adoption of a Member Parental Leave Policy would be in keeping with the Public Sector
Equality Duty (section 149 of the Equality Act 2010) requirement to eliminate unlawful
discrimination and in this case would promote equality of opportunity towards Members who
have parental responsibilities which require them to take time off.
Corporate
In adopting this policy proposal, the Council would need to make provisions in the annual
budget for any expenditure that would fall under parental leave.
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and
(iii) foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people
who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender reassignment,
religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to Marriage &
civil partnership.
This report relates to the following aim of the equality duty: ●
●
●

To eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other conduct
prohibited by the Act.
To advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not share it
To foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and
people who do not share it.

This policy proposal has positive implications on the Council’s approach to fulfilling its Public
Sector Equality Duty under Section 149 of the Equality Act 2010. This is because these
proposals would afford Members who have parental responsibility to continue to perform
their roles as elected Members of the Council without the fear that they would lose their roles
as lead councillors and the allowances that go with those roles when the need arises for
them to take up parental leave. This policy would provide equal treatment of councillors with
parental responsibilities and those Members without such responsibilities.

CORPORATE PRIORITIES
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ●

1.0

Communities

Introduction and Background

Page 36

Agenda Item 11
1.1

In line with an emerging local government policy trend that has seen some local
councils develop and adopt parental leave policies for Members, this report proposes
a similar approach for consideration by Thanet District Council.

1.2

Whilst there is no legal legislative requirement for the council to adopt the parental
leave policy, having such a policy would be a progressive approach and would mean
Thanet District Council would be at the forefront of councils to adopt such a policy.

1.3

The purpose of this policy is to confirm Thanet District Council’s commitment to
creating an environment that encourages any individual eligible to stand for election
to feel that they are able to do so irrespective of their family commitments. Having
such a policy would remove a perceived barrier and promote equality of opportunity
among those people with parenting responsibilities. It would encourage a wider range
of people to choose to become district councillors.

1.4

The policy would also ensure that those who are in their current roles as councillors
do not feel constrained by the Section 85 of the Local Government Act 1972 (As
amended) which requires that councillors attend at least one meeting of the council in
any six month period. As currently implemented, this requirement applies to all
councillors, including during times of parental leave.

1.5

According to an analysis done by the Fawcett Society (2017 report):
● Just 4% of local councils in England currently have a formal Parental Leave
policy in place for elected representatives. This had improved to 7% in 2019;
● 20 councils (8%) have a maternity policy in place for their senior cabinet level
councillors;
● It identified that one third of female councillors of child-bearing age found a
lack of maternity leave to be a barrier to fulfilling their role;
● Fewer than 1 in 5 council leaders are women;
● From 1997 to 2017 female councillor representation only rose by from 27 per
cent to 32 percent whilst the female proportion of the House of Commons
rose 14 percentage points to 32 per cent. (Fawcett Society, 10 March 2017,
https://www.fawcettsociety.org.uk/local-government-commission)

2.0

The Current Situation

2.1

The objective of the policy is to ensure that insofar as possible Members are able to
take appropriate leave at the time of birth or adoption, that both parents are able to
take leave, and that reasonable and adequate arrangements are in place to provide
cover for portfolio-holders and others in receipt of Special Responsibility Allowances
(SRA) during any period of leave taken.

2.2

Improved provision for new parents will contribute towards increasing the diversity of
experience, age and background of local authority councillors. It will also assist with
retaining experienced councillors – particularly women – and making public office
more accessible to individuals who might otherwise feel excluded from it.

2.3

There is at present no legal right to parental leave of any kind for people in elected
public office. This applies to councillors as well as Members of Parliament, and the
issue has been the subject of lengthy debates. These policies can therefore only
currently be implemented on a voluntary basis.

Page 37

Agenda Item 11

2.4

However it is worth noting that some councils across the country are being
encouraged to adopt and implement a parental leave policy. Discussions are ongoing
about changing the law to enable compulsory provision, but until then the Local
Government Association guide remains what constitutes best practice. Councils are
being strongly advised to consider adopting a Member parental leave policy.

2.5

Councils that have introduced Parental Leave Policy for Members include
Birmingham City Council in 2018, Sunderland City Council (November 2018) and
Newcastle City Council (January 2019).

3.0

Main Aspects of the Draft Policy

3.1

In the proposed policy Members who are expecting a child would automatically be
entitled to parental leave on the conditions set out in the draft parental leave policy
document at Annex 1 to the report.

3.2

The Member would continue to receive their Basic Member Allowance and where
applicable a Special Responsibility Allowance on the terms spelt out at para 4.1 in
the Policy document (Annex 1 to the report). Any replacement (or substitute) post
holder whose role attracts an SRA, would be paid on a pro rata basis.

3.3

The provisions of the policy would also mean that the Member could be absent from
Council meetings for up to six months or a longer period if agreed without triggering
the legal obligation to attend a council meeting or risk being disqualified from being a
councillor as required under the Local Government Act 1972 (as amended).

3.4

There are three options for payment of members’ allowances and special
responsibility allowances during the period of parental leave, which members are
asked to consider.

4.0

Review by the Constitutional Review Working Party and the
Standards Committee

4.1

The draft proposals were reviewed by the Constitutional Review Working Party at
their meeting on 15 June and they made the following recommendation:
“To recommend the draft parental leave policy to the Standards Committee including
the pay rates as shown at Option 2, namely:
Option 2
6 months full pay of Special Responsibility Allowance with any remaining leave being
unpaid.”

4.2

The recommendation outlined at paragraph 4.1 above was considered by the
Standards Committee at their meeting of 24 June, where the committee concurred

Page 38

Agenda Item 11
with the view of the Constitutional Review Working Party and subsequently made the
following recommendation:
“To recommend the draft parental leave policy to the Council including the pay rates
as shown at Option 2, namely:
Option 2
6 months full pay of Special Responsibility Allowance with any remaining leave being
unpaid.”

5.0

Options

5.1

Members could agree with the recommendation from the Standards Committee.

5.2

Members could disagree with the recommendation from the Standards Committee
and agree on an alternative option regarding remuneration.

5.3

Members could reject the draft proposals.

Contact Officer: (Charles Hungwe, Senior Democratic Services Officer, Tel: 01843 577186)
Reporting to: (Nick Hughes, Committee Services Manager)
Annex List
Annex 1: Draft Member Parental Leave Policy
Background Papers
None
Corporate Consultation
Finance: Chris Blundell (Director of Finance)
Legal: Estelle Culligan (Director of Law and Democracy)

Page 39

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 11
Annex 1

DRAFT MEMBER PARENTAL LEAVE POLICY
1.0

Leave Periods

1.1

Members giving birth are entitled to up to 6 months maternity leave from the
due date, with the option to extend up to 52 weeks by agreement if required.

1.2

In addition, where the birth is premature, the Member is entitled to take leave
during the period between the date of the birth and the due date in addition to
the 6 months’ period. In such cases any leave taken to cover prematurity of 28
days or less shall be deducted from any extension beyond the initial 6 months.

1.3

In exceptional circumstances, and only in cases of prematurity of 29 days or
more, additional leave may be taken by agreement, and such exceptional
leave shall not be deducted from the total 52 week entitlement.

1.4

Members shall be entitled to take a minimum of 2 weeks paternity leave if they
are the biological father or nominated carer of their partner/spouse following
the birth of their child(ren).

1.5

A Member who has made Shared Parental Leave arrangements through their
employment is requested to advise the Council of these at the earliest
possible opportunity. Every effort will be made to replicate such arrangements
in terms of leave from Council.

1.6

Where both parents are Members leave may be shared up to a maximum of
24 weeks for the first six months and 26 weeks for any leave agreed
thereafter, up to a maximum of 50 weeks. Special and exceptional
arrangements may be made in cases of prematurity.

1.7

A Member who adopts a child through an approved adoption agency shall be
entitled to take up to six months adoption leave from the date of placement,
with the option to extend up to 52 weeks by agreement if required.

1.8

Any Member who takes maternity, shared parental or adoption leave retains
their legal duty under the Local Government Act 1972 to attend a meeting of
the Council within a six month period. Council agreed on XX XX 2021 that any
Member on maternity, paternity, shared parental or adoption leave can have
an extended leave of absence during the period of their maternity, shared
parental or adoption leave. This council resolution enables the Member to
remain compliant to the legal duty to attend meetings under the Local
Government Act 1972 (as amended) when on any types of the parental leave
stated above of up to six months or more as is appropriate.

Page 41

Agenda Item 11
Annex 1
1.9

Any Member intending to take maternity, paternity, shared parental or
adoption leave will be responsible for ensuring that they comply with the
relevant notice requirements of the Council, both in terms of the point at which
the leave starts and the point at which they return.

1.10 Any member taking leave should ensure that they respond to reasonable
requests for information as promptly as possible, and that they keep officers
and colleagues informed and updated in relation to intended dates of return
and requests for extension of leave.
2.0

Basic Allowance

2.1

All Members shall continue to receive their Basic Allowance in accordance
with the rules on Payment in section 4 below whilst on maternity, paternity or
adoption leave.

3.0

Special Responsibility Allowances

3.1

Members entitled to a Special Responsibility Allowance shall continue to
receive their allowance in accordance with section 4 below, in the case of
maternity, paternity, shared parental or adoption leave.

3.2

Where a replacement is appointed to cover the period of absence that person
shall receive an SRA on a pro rata basis for the period of the temporary
appointment.

3.3

The payment of Special Responsibility Allowances, whether to the primary
SRA holder or a replacement, during a period of maternity, paternity, shared
parental or adoption leave shall continue for a period of six months, or until
the date of the next Annual Meeting of the Council, or until the date when the
member taking leave is up for election (whichever is soonest). At such a point,
the position will be reviewed, and will be subject to a possible extension for a
further six month period.

3.4

Should a Member appointed to replace the member on maternity, paternity,
shared parental or adoption leave already hold a remunerated position, the
ordinary rules relating to payment of more than one Special Responsibility
Allowances shall apply.

3.5

Unless the Member taking leave is removed from their post at an Annual
General Meeting of the Council whilst on leave, or unless the Party to which
they belong loses control of the Council during their leave period, they shall
return at the end of their leave period to the same post, or to an alternative

Page 42

Agenda Item 11
Annex 1
post with equivalent status and remuneration which they held before the leave
began.
4.0
Parental Leave Pay
To be discussed:
Options include:
Option 1 (This mirrors the provision for staff, but NB that members are not currently
entitled to statutory maternity pay)
4.1

Members are entitled on a sliding scale to:
● 10 weeks at 90% of Special Responsibility Allowances, followed by:
● 16 weeks at 50% of Special Responsibility Allowances followed by
unpaid leave for any additional leave agreed up to 52 weeks.

Option 2 (This is in line with the current policy for MPs)
4.2

6 months full pay of Special Responsibility Allowances where applicable, with
any remaining leave being unpaid

Option 3 (This is in line with the model policy for local government councillors
provided on the LGA website)
4.3

Receipt of full pay of Special Responsibility Allowances where applicable
throughout the whole of the leave, whether 6 months or any additional leave
up to 52 weeks. NB that this is more generous than the arrangements for
employees.

5.0

Resigning from Office and Elections

5.1

If a Member decides not to return at the end of their maternity, paternity,
shared parental or adoption leave they must notify the Council at the earliest
possible opportunity. All allowances will cease from the effective resignation
date.

5.2

If an election is held during the Member’s maternity, paternity, shared parental
or adoption leave and they are not re-elected, or decide not to stand for
re-election, their basic allowance and SRA if appropriate will cease from the
Monday after the election date when they would technically leave office.

Page 43

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 12
CHANGES TO COMMITTEES, PANELS AND BOARDS - 2021/22
Council

15 July 2021

Report Author

Nick Hughes, Committee Services Manager

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Executive Summary:
The report allows Council to agree on the number and size of the Committees, Panels
and Boards for the remainder of the municipal year and then subsequently the
proportionality of the Council as result of the resignation of Cllr Game as a Councillor.
The report then goes on to address the allocation of seats on those bodies to political
Groups.

Recommendation(s):
4.2.1 That Council agrees with the option outlined at paragraph 4.1.1 to achieve
proportionality.
5.5.1

To note the corresponding group nominations to Committees, Panels and
Boards for the remainder of 2021/22 as per paragraph 5.4.1. (The names of
those Councillors so nominated will be presented at the meeting)

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
There are no direct financial implications from this report. However members
allowances included in the annual budget are based on the existing structure and any
increase in size or number of committees would require approval of the resulting
increase in the budget.
Legal
The composition and allocation of membership of committees has been based on the
relevant legislative requirements.
Corporate
There are no direct Corporate Implications
Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty
(section 149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at

Page 45

Agenda Item 12
the time the decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful
discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii)
advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected characteristic
and people who do not share it, and (iii) foster good relations between people who
share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, sex, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender
reassignment, religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty
applies to Marriage & civil partnership.
This report relates to the following aim of the equality duty: ●
●
●

To eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment, victimisation and other
conduct prohibited by the Act.
To advance equality of opportunity between people who share a protected
characteristic and people who do not share it
To foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic
and people who do not share it.

Corporate Priorities
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ● Communities

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

The report allows Council to agree on the number and size of the Committees,
Panels and Boards for the remainder of the municipal year and then
subsequently the proportionality of the Council as result of Cllr Game
resigning his position as a Councillor. The report then goes on to address the
allocation of seats on those bodies to political Groups.

2.0

Political Balance

2.1

The political balance of the Council as a result of Cllr Game resigning as a
Councillor is shown below:
Political Group
Conservative
Labour
Thanet Independents
Green
Independent (not in a group)
Vacant Seats

3.0

No. of Cllrs before
changes
26
17
6
4
3
0

No. of Cllrs after
changes
25
17
6
4
3
1

Political Proportionality

Page 46

Agenda Item 12
3.1

The Local Government and Housing Act 1989 requires the Council to allocate
seats on committees to political Groups in accordance with the size of each
group on the Council as a whole and in accordance with the following
principles which should be observed as far as is reasonably practicable:
a)

That not all seats on the same committee are allocated to the same
political group;

b)

That the majority of the seats on a committee are allocated to a
particular political group if the number of persons belonging to that group
is a majority of the Council’s membership;

c)

That, subject to a) and b) above, the number of seats on committees
allocated to each political group bears the same proportion of the total of
all the seats on committees;

d)

That, subject to a), b) and c) above, the number of seats on a committee
allocated to each political group bears the same proportion to the
number of all seats on that committee.

3.2

For the purposes of political balance a Group is required to have at least two
members and to have been formally constituted as a political group before the
meeting.

3.3

The report author has contacted the leaders of the political groups and
consensus on an option to achieve political balance has been achieved.
Therefore the Council is asked to agree to the following solution.

4.0

Consensus Solution

4.1.1 That the number of seats on the Planning Committee for the Conservative
group is reduced from seven to six and the number of seats for the Green
group is increased from one to two. In addition one seat is removed from the
Overview and Scrutiny Panel and Conservative group loses that seat. The
table below shows the changes to numbers serving on Committees as a result
of this proposal:

Page 47

Agenda Item 12
Committees

Total

Conservative
Group

Labour Group

Thanet
Independents

Green
Group

Planning
Committee
Licensing
Board
Overview
and Scrutiny
Panel
Gov. and
Audit
General
Purposes
B&EA
Working
Party
CRWP

14

6

4

1

2

12

6

4

1

1

13

6

4

2

1

12

6

4

1

1

12

6

4

1

1

6

3

2

1

0

4

2

1

1

0

Totals

73

35

24

8

6

4.1.2 The overall political balance calculation for the proposal shown above is
available at Annex 1.
4.2

Recommendation

4.2.1 That Council agrees the option outlined at paragraph 4.1.1 to achieve
proportionality.

5.0

Nominations of Members to serve on Committees

5.1

Members are reminded that Section 16 of the Local Government and Housing
Act 1989 states that where the Council has determined the allocation to
different groups of the seats to which the Act applies, it shall be the duty of the
authority to give effect to a Group’s wishes about who is to be appointed to the
seats that they have been allocated.

5.2

Therefore the corresponding amendments to group nominations as outlined
below must also be made.

5.3

In addition the Conservative Group have also informed Democratic Services
that Cllr Scott will be removed from the Planning Committee.

5.4

Consensus Option

5.4.1 That a seat is removed from the Conservative Group on the Planning
Committee and the Green Group gain a seat on the Planning Committee. That

Page 48

Agenda Item 12
a seat is removed from the Overview and Scrutiny Panel and the Conservative
Group lose this seat.
This is summarised in the table below:
Committee/Group
Planning Committee
Conservative Group

Current Position

New Position

7 seats

Green Group
Planning Reserves
Conservative Group
Green Group
Overview & Scrutiny
Panel
Conservative Group

1 seat

6 seats (Cllr Scott to be the
Cllr removed)
2 seats

7 seats
1 seat

6 seats
2 seats

7 seats

6 Seats

5.5

Recommendation

5.5.1

To note the corresponding group nominations to Committees, Panels and
Boards for the remainder of 2021/22 as per paragraph 5.4.1. (The names of
those Councillors so nominated will be presented at the meeting)

6.0

Changes to Chair and Vice-Chairs of Committees

6.1

Any vacancies in Chairs or Vice Chair positions as a result of the changes
outlined in this report would be considered as casual vacancies and as such
would be filled by the relevant committee at their next meeting.

Contact Officer: Nick Hughes, Committee Services Manager
Reporting to: Estelle Culligan (Director of Law and Democracy)
Annex List
Annex 1: Proportionality calculations for main committees covered by Local
Government & Housing Act 1989
Background Papers
None
Corporate Consultation
Finance: Chris Blundell, Director of Finance
Legal: Estelle Culligan (Director of Law and Democracy)

Page 49

This page is intentionally left blank

Option 1

Overall Council
Groups only

Members
55

Conservativ
e
25

Labour
17

TIC
6

Green
4

53

25

17

6

4

100.00%

48.08%

32.69%

11.54%

7.69%

Members
14
100.00%
12
100.00%
13
100.00%
12
100.00%
12
100.00%
6
100.00%
4
100.00%
73
100.00%

Conservativ
e
6
42.86%
6
50.00%
6
46.15%
6
50.00%
6
50.00%
3
50.00%
2
50.00%
35
47.95%

Labour
5
35.71%
4
33.33%
4
30.77%
4
33.33%
4
33.33%
2
33.33%
1
25.00%
24
32.88%

73

35.10

23.87

8.42

5.62

0

-0.10

0.13

-0.42

0.38

Non group
3
check
100.00%

Under s15 LGHA 1989
proportionality applies in full

Planning Committee
Licensing Board
Scrutiny Panel
Governance & Audit
General Purposes
BEAWP

Totals entitlement
Difference from entitlement no.
Difference from entitlement %

-0.1317

0.1844

7.14%
1
8.33%
2
15.38%
1
8.33%
1
8.33%
1
16.67%
1
25.00%
8
10.96%

-0.5796

Green
2
14.29%
1
8.33%
1
7.69%
1
8.33%
1
8.33%
0
0.00%
0
0.00%
6
8.22%

0.5269

check
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
100.00%
0.00

Agenda Item 12

Totals allocated

1

Annex 1

Page 51

CRWP

Thanet
Independents

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 13


ReportofanUrgentDecisionunderRule4oftheBudgetandPolicy
FrameworkprocedureRules 

Council

ReportAuthor

PortfolioHolder

Status

Classification:

KeyDecision

Ward:


15July2021
EstelleCulligan,DirectorofLawandDemocracy 
Cllr Ash Ashbee, Leader of Council and Cllr DavidSaunders,
CabinetMemberforFinance 
ForInformation 
Unrestricted 
No 
All 

ExecutiveSummary: 

ThisreportnotifiesCounciloftheuseofpowerstotakeanurgentdecisionbyCabinetunder
Rule4oftheBudgetandPolicyFrameworkProcedureRulesintheConstitution. 


Recommendation(s): 

None-theReportisforInformationonly. 


CorporateImplications 

FinancialandValueforMoney 

Pleaseseecommentsintheoriginalreport 

Legal 

Rule4oftheBudgetandPolicyFrameworkProcedureRulesintheConstitutionstatesthat
alldecisionsoutsidetheBudgetandPolicyFrameworkshouldbemadebyfullCouncil.This
matterwasbroughttoCabineton8June2021asanurgentdecisionsincethenextmeeting
ofCouncilwasnotuntilJuly.TheConstitutionstatesthatCabinetcandealwiththisdecision
as an urgent matter, subject to the agreement of the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny
Committee.Italsostatesthat,followingtheurgentdecision,areportwillbetakentothenext
meetingofCounciltoexplainthedecisionandthereasonfortheurgentdecision. 



Corporate 

Pleaseseecommentsintheoriginalreport 


Page 53

Agenda Item 13

EqualityAct2010&PublicSectorEqualityDuty 

Pleaseseecommentsintheoriginalreport 


CORPORATEPRIORITIES 
Thisreportrelatestothefollowingcorporatepriorities:- 
(deleteasappropriate) 
● Growth 
● Environment 
● Communities 


1.0 IntroductionandBackground 

1.1

1.2


1.3


AnurgentreportwasbroughttoCabineton8June2021entitled”CostandFinancing
ofDisciplinaryandGrievancesMatters.” 
As an urgent decision outside the budget framework, the Chair of Overview and
ScrutinywasinformedandgaveconsentforthemattertobedealtwithbyCabinet.It
wasreportedthatareportwouldbebroughttothismeetingofCouncil. 
Theoriginalreportcanbefoundatthefollowinglink: 
https://democracy.thanet.gov.uk/documents/s72593/Cost%20and%20Financing%20o
f%20Disciplinary%20and%20Grievances%20Matters%20-%20Cab%208%20June%2
02021%20-%20Google%20Docs.pdf. 


1.4

Minutesfromthemeetingcanbefoundatthefollowinglink: 

https://democracy.thanet.gov.uk/ieListDocuments.aspx?CId=151&MId=5965 




2.0 ReasonsfortheUrgentDecision 

2.1


2.2


2.3

Cabinetwasrequestedtoconsiderthereportandmakeanurgentdecisionbecause
oftheincreaseincostsoverandabovetheamountsbudgetedfor.Thesecostshad
notbeenreflectedinthepreviousmostrecentbudgetmonitoringreport. 
Officershadrecentlyobtainedanuptodatecostsbreakdownoftheproceedingsand
itwasimperativetopresentthesecostsforadecisiontobetakenonthebudgetas
quicklyaspossible. 
TheChairofOverviewandScrutinywasconsultedonthematterandagreedthatthe
mattershouldbedealtwithbyCabinetundertherulesonurgentdecisions. 



3.0 NextSteps 

3.1

CostsoftheproceedingswillbecloselymonitoredandreportedtotheGeneral
PurposesCommitteeasnecessary. 


ContactOfficer:Estelle Culligan (Director of Law and Democracy) 

Page 54

Agenda Item 13

Reportingto:Madeline Homer (Chief Executive) 

CorporateConsultation 

Finance:C
 hrisBlundell(DirectorofFinance) 
Legal:N
 otrequired 

Page 55

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 14
Report to Council on two Urgent Decisions under Rule 4 of the
Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules
Council

15 July 2021

Report Author

Louise Askew, Director of Regeneration

Portfolio Holder

Cllr Reece Pugh, Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for
Economic Development

Status

For Information

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Ward:

All

Executive Summary:
This report notifies Council of the use of powers to take two urgent decisions by Cabinet
under Rule 4 of the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules in the Constitution.

Recommendation(s):
None - the Report is for Information only.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
Please see comments in the original reports.
Legal
Rule 4 of the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure Rules in the Constitution states that
all decisions outside the Budget and Policy Framework should be made by full Council.
These matters were urgent decisions made by individual Cabinet members to move external
funding into the Capital Programme, in order to deliver the next steps required for the
external funding. The Constitution states that Cabinet can deal with this decision as an
urgent matter, subject to the agreement of the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee. It
also states that, following the urgent decision, a report will be taken to the next meeting of
Council to explain the decision and the reason for the urgent decision.
Corporate
Please see comments in the original report

Page 57

Agenda Item 14

Equality Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Please see comments in the original report

CORPORATE PRIORITIES
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: (delete as appropriate)
● Growth

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

The first urgent report was agreed by an individual Cabinet member on 6 January,
2021 entitled ”Capital Works Programme - 51-57 High Street, Margate.” The second
was decided by an individual Cabinet member on 3 June, 2021 entitled “Capital
Project - High Street Heritage Action Zone Grant Payment”.

1.2

As urgent decisions outside the budget framework, the Chair of Overview and
Scrutiny was informed and gave consent for the matter to be dealt with by Cabinet.

1.3

The original reports can be found at the following links:
Capital Works Programme - 51-57 High Street, Margate
Capital Project - High Street Heritage Action Zone Grant payment

2.0

Reasons for the Urgent Decision

2.1

Cabinet was requested to consider the reports and make urgent decisions due to the
timescales required for the external funding and project timescales. Delaying the
decisions would have impacted on the projects.

2.2

Both decisions were to move external funding received by the Council, for specific
projects, into the Capital Programme, which requires it to be reported to the Full
Council.

2.3

The Chair of Overview and Scrutiny was consulted on the matter and agreed that the
matters should be dealt with by individual Cabinet Member decisions under Part 4
Council Procedure Rules, specifically the Budget and Policy Framework Procedure
Rule 4.0 (a and b) on urgent decisions outside the Budget.

Contact Officer: Louise Askew (Director of Regeneration)
Reporting to: Madeline Homer (Chief Executive)
Corporate Consultation
Finance: Chris Blundell (Director of Finance)
Legal: Estelle Culligan (Director of Law and Democracy)

Page 58

Agenda Item 15
AMENDMENTS TO THE MEMBERS ALLOWANCES
SCHEME 2021/22
Council

15 July 2021

Report Author

Nicholas Hughes – Committee Services Manager

Status

For Decision

Classification:

Unrestricted

Key Decision

No

Ward:

All Wards

Executive Summary:
This report is provided to allow the Council to agree amendments to members allowances
scheme for the 2021/22 financial year as a result of the Leader of the Council increasing the
number of Cabinet members and Shadow Cabinet members.
Once the scheme is agreed it will be forwarded to the East Kent Joint Independent
Remuneration Panel (EKJIRP) for them to comment on. These comments will then be
considered by Council at a future meeting.

Recommendation(s):
To add one additional Cabinet member special responsibility allowance and one additional
shadow Cabinet member special responsibility allowance to the scheme of members
allowances and to refer the scheme to EKJIRP for them to consider, with any amendments
being reported back to Council.

Corporate Implications
Financial and Value for Money
The approval of additional members allowances for an extra Portfolio Holder and Opposition
Spokesperson will cost approximately £10,850. This can be met in full from existing budgets.
If Members agree to increase the rates or number of Members’ Allowances or to more than
that set out in the report, additional budget or commensurate savings would need to be
identified within the 2021/22 budget to cover this increase.
Legal
The Council is required to have regard to the recommendations of EKJIRP in making a
scheme of allowances.

Page 59

Agenda Item 15
Section 18 of the Local Government and Housing Act 1989 permits the Secretary of State, by
regulations, to make a scheme providing for the payment of a basic allowance, an
attendance allowance and a special responsibility allowance to members of a local authority.
Section 100 of the Local Government Act 2000 permits the Secretary of State, by
regulations, to provide for travelling and subsistence allowances for members of local
authorities, allowances for attending conferences and meetings and reimbursement of
expenses. In exercise of these powers the Secretary of State has made the Local Authorities
(Members’ Allowances) (England) Regulations 2003.
The Regulations require the council to make a scheme before the beginning of each year for
the payment of basic allowance. The scheme must also make provision for the authority’s
approach to special responsibility allowance, dependants’ carers’ allowance, travelling and
subsistence allowance and co-optees’ allowance. The scheme may also provide for other
matters of the kind dealt with in the proposed scheme.
When considering the scheme, the Council must have due regard to the need to eliminate
unlawful conduct under the Equality Act 2010, the need to advance equality of opportunity
and the need to foster good relations between persons who share a protected characteristic
and those who don’t (the public sector equality duty). This consideration should be supported
by a proportionate level of equality analysis.
Corporate
The level of allowances may be seen as both impacting on the public’s perception of the
Council and a factor in making public services as a Councillor attractive to a broad range of
potential candidates.
Equalities Act 2010 & Public Sector Equality Duty
Members are reminded of the requirement, under the Public Sector Equality Duty (section
149 of the Equality Act 2010) to have due regard to the aims of the Duty at the time the
decision is taken. The aims of the Duty are: (i) eliminate unlawful discrimination, harassment,
victimisation and other conduct prohibited by the Act, (ii) advance equality of opportunity
between people who share a protected characteristic and people who do not share it, and (iii)
foster good relations between people who share a protected characteristic and people who
do not share it.
Protected characteristics: age, gender, disability, race, sexual orientation, gender
reassignment, religion or belief and pregnancy & maternity. Only aim (i) of the Duty applies to
Marriage & civil partnership.
Although it does not directly relate to protected groups, the draft scheme contains the ability
to pay a dependent carers allowance to Councillors. This contributes to aims 1 and 2 of the
Equality Act as it removes barriers to Councillors standing who have relatives that may be in
need of dependent care.

Corporate Priorities
This report relates to the following corporate priorities: ● Communities

Page 60

Agenda Item 15

1.0

Introduction and Background

1.1

On 4 June 2021 the newly elected Leader of the Council revised her Cabinet
portfolios and increased their number by one. As a result of the additional Cabinet
member, there was also an increase in the number of Shadow Cabinet members as
they must mirror each other.

1.2

This report is provided to allow the Council to agree the necessary amendments to
members allowances scheme for the 2021/22 financial year to reflect these changes.

2.0

Required Changes

2.1

The changes required to allow for all Cabinet and Shadow Cabinet members to have
an allowance is show in the table below:

Current Allowances
Position

Number

Allowance (£)

Possible maximum
expenditure (£)

Portfolio Holder

3

7,990

23,970

Opposition
Spokesperson

3

2,862

8,586

Portfolio Holder

4

7,990

31,960

Opposition
Spokesperson

4

2,862

11,448

Proposed Allowances

2.2

These changes result in additional expenditure of £10,852. There is sufficient capacity
within the budget to allow for this increase without needing to amend the budget.

3.0

Options

3.1

Council can choose;

a)

To add one additional Cabinet member special responsibility allowance and one
additional shadow Cabinet member special responsibility allowance to the scheme of
members allowances and to refer the scheme to EKJIRP for them to consider, with
any amendments being reported back to Council.

b)

Not to change the scheme, however this would leave a Cabinet member and a
Shadow Cabinet member without an allowance for their work. This is not
recommended.

Page 61

Agenda Item 15

4.0

Next Steps

4.1

It is for Council to agree the Members’ Allowances Scheme. However the scheme
and any amendments made would need to be the subject of consultation with the
East Kent Joint Independent Remuneration Panel. The Remuneration Panel can then
make recommendations back to Council, any recommendations will then be
considered by Council at a future meeting.

Contact Officer: Nick Hughes, Committee Services Manager
Reporting to: Estelle Culligan (Director of Law and Democracy)
Annex List
None
Background Papers
There are no background papers with this report.
Corporate Consultation
Finance: Chris Blundell (Director of Finance)
Legal: Estelle Culligan (Director of Law and Democracy)

Page 62

